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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFA AMENDMENT #1 AND

RFA SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFA NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202206098 - Maine Healthcare Workforce Initiative Grant Funding Opportunity for Expansion of Rural Clinical Preceptorships and Rural Graduate Medical Education (GME) Programs

	RFA ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, 
Office of Commissioner

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	September 23, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

	AMENDMENT AND QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	September 29, 2022

	APPLICATION DUE DATE:
	October 11, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

	APPLICATIONS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFA remain unchanged.



	DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFA:

1. Performance/Outcomes Metric Forms are revised.



	REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFA:
1. The Performance/Outcomes Metric Forms are replaced in their entirety.
The Rural Clinical Preceptorships and Rural GME Programs Performance/Outcomes Metrics Forms may be obtained in a Word (.docx) format by double clicking on the document icons below.  
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Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Do you think Maine EMS as a state agency could apply for some funding to support the creation of a clinical preceptor training course? 
That is something that we are lacking in Maine so that clinical preceptorships are standardized across the State of Maine. Thoughts on this idea?

	
	Answer

	
	All applications focused on building the healthcare workforce capacity in Rural areas of the State will be evaluated and considered for funding utilizing the Application Evaluation and Selection process outline in the RFA. 


	2
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. How does the Dept. of Health and Human Services define organization? 

b. Does this potentially include other state entities?

	
	Answer

	
	a. In relation to this RFA, organization is defined as any entity focused on building the healthcare workforce capacity in Rural areas of the State as outlined in the RFA.
b. Yes.


	3
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Is there a press release that describes these opportunities that you could share? 

I would like to share with my members in case any organizations might be interested in applying but apart from the applications I don't see descriptions of each of these specifically.

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to Governor Mills Announces $1.6M Grant Program to Expand Medical Provider Training in Rural Maine.


	4
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. We have a question regarding the limit on funding per training site ($75,000): Does this mean each physical training site?  
b. For example, would two different Northern Light sites (e.g., Acadia Hospital and Maine Coast Hospital) be counted as two independent training sites?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes.
b. Yes.


	5
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Is it an appropriate use of funds to provide funding directly to the placement site to compensate for supervisors’ time in supervising students in addition to giving money directly to the supervisor (preceptor, field instructor) for their service?

	
	Answer

	
	Compensating for supervisors’ time is an allowable expense. Paying preceptors directly in addition to paying the placement site to compensate for the preceptor time may result in and be considered “double dipping” and would not be allowable. Applicants must explain the basis for determining the expenses submitted on the budget form.  


	6
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. Given that most of our students (social work) are in field placements in conjunction with the academic year, would it be possible to have a no-cost extension through May 31, 2024?  
b. How soon after submitting the grant will we hear if we’ve received funding.  This will impact when we start the project.

	
	Answer

	
	a. Awarded Applicants will initially receive funding for one (1) year, with an option to extend for the remainder of the grant period pending progress towards required Performance Metrics as outlined in the applications.
b. The Department declines to answer.


	7
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Can a placement site, situated in an urban area (such as Acadia Hospital), that does telehealth to rural areas, and the students are involved in that telehealth, be used as a training site?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the performance metric table within the application. The intent of this funding is to expand training into rural areas. Students must physically be present in the rural area during their clinical training to be eligible. Funding could be used to support students who access training delivered via telehealth methods only if they are directly serving in a clinical site at a rural provider.  The intent of this initiative from the Governor’s Maine Jobs and Recovery Plan is to:
· Expand training for doctors, nurses, and other health professionals in rural communities 

· Encourage aspiring health care workers to launch rewarding careers in Down East, northern, and western Maine

· Support the pipeline of medical providers in areas where they’re needed most and strengthen Maine’s health care workforce for patients throughout the state


	8
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	What percentage of the grant can be used for program management? 

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Applicant’s discretion to determine appropriate allocation of grant funds.  The Applicant’s fiscal capacity, budget form and narrative will be scored based on the proposed program design, as well as the proposed utilization of funding, the number of clinical students to be served, and the likely impact from the budget being proposed.


	9
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	What percentage of the grant can go to indirect costs?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Applicant’s discretion to determine an appropriate indirect cost if applicable.  The Department will negotiate the indirect cost, if necessary, with Applicants who receive a conditional contract award. 


	10
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Can the program manager be tasked with developing new sites during the start-up of the project, thereby setting aside money in the budget for those yet undeveloped sites?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the performance metrics table within the application. Applicants must project the number of students and clinical sites to be served as part of the application submission. 


	11
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	One issue is that placement sites for social work students often don’t have social workers on staff to supervise, so faculty need to provide additional supervision.  Can funds be used to hire a temporary faculty member to provide this clinical supervision?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	12
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	We are interested in exploring partnering with Penobscot Nation Indian Health Service; they are in Old Town.  Can the Penobscot Nation be exempt from the rural requirement?

	
	Answer

	
	Clinical sites must be physically located in an area considered rural as defined by Human Resources & Services Administration (HRSA), Rural Health Grants Eligibility Analyzer. 


	13
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	In order to persuade students who do not live in rural areas to take placements far from their home, we anticipate needing to make that appealing.  In addition to mileage and housing (likely overnights in a motel), would stipends for students and/or food vouchers be allowable? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	14
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Will the PowerPoint presentation be available by itself or just through the recording?

	
	Answer

	
	The PowerPoint presentation may be obtained in a PDF (.pdf) format by double clicking on the document icon below.  
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	15
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	If our hospital location is Maine and we have three clinical sites and are allowed to apply for 75K per site, would $225,000 be our maximum for our organization as a whole?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Applicant’s discretion to determine the level of funding need to support the proposed program design.  Clinical Preceptorships will be capped at a maximum of $75,000 per Clinical site. 
Applicants may apply for one or both strategies.  The Department anticipates making multiple awards as a result of this RFA process and reserves the right to eliminate the lowest scoring application(s), approve or deny any funding requests, and/or make awards at amounts less than requested, whichever is in the best interest of the State. 


	16
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Can you please provide me with a copy of the PowerPoint, so I can print out for my informational use?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 14 of this document.


	17
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	I'm worried about waiting until September 30th to receive the replies and wonder if there is any way to get answers sooner.

In particular, we are wondering about pursuing a training site (for clinical social workers) that is housed in urban Bangor, but which uses telehealth extensively to rural sites.  Our students would be trained in this telehealth practice with rural clients.

	
	Answer

	
	Responses to all questions will be compiled in writing and posted on the following website no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the proposal due date: Division of Procurement Services Grant RFPs and RFAs Page.


	18
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Submission parameters
	It states in the NOFO that the Department will consider funding contracts that begin as early as Sept. 1, 2022; yet, the applications are due Oct. 11, 2022. 

I am wondering if this means the Department will be reviewing applications on a rolling basis, or if all applications will be reviewed after the submission deadline. Any clarification you can provide would be greatly appreciated.

	
	Answer

	
	All applications will be reviewed after the application due date of October 11, 2022.  The Department anticipates the contract period to begin in November 2022.


	19
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. Do you know if this is just an opportunity for Maine or does NH and Mass have a program like this? We have clinics in all 3 states.

b. Our company is a for profit urgent care with roughly 1,200 employees in 3 states. There is an investment firm invested with us now. Would this disqualify us? 

c. If we can apply do you know if there are any parameters to Annual Revenue?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department would refer you to the states of NH and MA. 

b. The Department cannot determine which entities would be qualified or disqualified without reviewing a complete application.  

c. The Department does not regulate parameters to annual revenue. 


	20
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Our headquarters is located in Portsmouth, NH. Assuming that means we are not Maine based? 

We would be partnering with a school located in Maine and clinical training would happen in Maine at a rural clinic.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department would consider an application where partnerships include entities outside of Maine as long as students receive their clinical training within Maine.  Clinical training sites must be located in Maine, in an area considered rural as defined by Human Resources & Services Administration (HRSA), Rural Health Grants Eligibility Analyzer. 
To be considered for grant funding, the Lead applicant must: 
· Be a Maine-based organization; and
· Operate an accredited training or education program within the State; or 
· Partner with an organization that operates an accredited training or education program; or 
· Propose to become an accredited training program through the grant funding being offered. 


	21
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Will the grantee be considered a contractor (providing specified services in support of a program) or a subrecipient (has its performance measured in relation to whether objectives of a federal program were met and has responsibility for programmatic decision making)?

	
	Answer

	
	These services would be considered State services (not subrecipient) and not subject to MAAP.


	22
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	If a hospital already has a fully functioning preceptorship arrangement with an academic partner in a specific modality (e.g., Family Practice), may we utilize Strategy 1: Rural Clinical Preceptorship Programs to establish a new preceptorship in, say, Emergency Medicine, with the same existing academic partner?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, as long as the funding will be utilized to expand the number of students served or provide additional specialty training.  Funding is intended to increase capacity. It may not support or supplant existing clinical sites. 


	23
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. Does the $75,000 funding cap apply for both Strategies, or is it specific to Strategy 1?
b. If it's the latter, is there guidance on determining grant request amounts for Strategy 2?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The $75,000 funding cap is specific to Strategy 1.

b. Refer to the answer to question 15 of this document. 


	24
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. Is it possible to request the total of $75,000 in support of one year's worth of activities? or
b. Is it intended to be distributed evenly across the 2-year contract period?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes.
b. No, the Department anticipates the initial contract period to be twelve (12) months with an option for a no-cost extension through 12/31/2024 pending progress towards the required Performance Metrics and if funding is not fully expended. 


	25
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. What is the definition of a site?  

b. What makes one site distinct from another?
c. Is it Tax ID number? Physical location? Cost center?

	
	Answer

	
	a. The location where Clinical Preceptorships occur. 
b. Each site is individual. 

c. Physical location.


	26
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Our company has an investment firm that owns 51 percent of the company as of last year. 
Is there any revenue restrictions for this grant? 
Reason I ask is because Bain Capital generates about 197 million in revenue a year and with them owning a portion of the company it may throw a monkey wrench into things.

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	27
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	I am new to the grant process and wanted to ask about eligibility of these funds. One of the issues that we face is the lack of staffing available to be a clinical preceptor. Can these funds be used to hire an RN to oversee a preceptorship and training program to increase the number of CCMAs in our area?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	28
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Can you tell me if there is any revenue guidelines for this grant? I would like to submit the application before next Friday and that's all I seem to be missing for answered questions regarding this grant.

	
	Answer

	
	No.


	29
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	If our hospital location is Maine and we have three clinical sites and are allowed to apply for 75K per site, would $225,000 be our maximum for our organization as a whole? 

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 15 of this document. 


	30
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Can you please provide me with a copy of the PowerPoint, so I can print out for my informational use? 

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the answer to question 14 of this document. 


	31
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Eligibility Requirement
	Does/will the Applicant partner with an organization that operates an accredited training or education program?

We will not be the lead applicant organization on the proposal but would like to participate as one of the partners "that operates an accredited training/education program." Our clinical education programs are accredited, and the Roux Institute/NU is included in the ME DOE list of programs with a presence in ME, I just want to confirm we are eligible to join as a partner on this proposal. 

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the discretion of the Applicant.


	32
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 6, Activities and Requirements, A. Allowable Use of Funds
	There is a statement that “the Department may limit the percentage of grant funds that may be used for administrative or indirect costs but recognizes the need for partnerships to build capacity to achieve broader workforce gains”.   
a. Are organizations with a federally Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) expected to include that rate in the proposal, or is the Department requesting and/or allowing that a reduced rate be used? 
b. If so, what rate?  
c. Will a lower rate be viewed as an advantage in the competitive ranking of proposals, when comparing otherwise equal proposals? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the answer to question 9 of this document.
b. Refer to the answer to question 9 of this document.
c. The Department will not compare applications against each other.  Each application will be score individually based on the criteria set forth in the RFA. 


	33
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	a. We are wondering about why the Performance Metric Table only includes 3 quarters.  We assume that is because you will be evaluating where a second year of funding is warranted after the first three quarters.
b. Also, we assume that if we establish a site in quarter 2 and continue to use that site in quarter 3, that the total number of sites would be 1 and not 2.  Is that the correct interpretation?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Refer to the amended language at the beginning of this document. 
b. Yes.


	34
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What are the options, if any, for a one year no-cost extension for the grant?   

We are proposing a state-wide Collaborative development and would like to explore ear-marking a small amount of funding for sustainability into a no-cost third year - if permitted

	
	Answer

	
	The Department anticipates the initial contract period to be twelve (12) months with an option for a no-cost extension through 12/31/2024 pending progress towards the required Performance Metrics and if funding is not fully expended. 


	35
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Are there salary caps for physician FTE costs?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Applicant’s discretion to determine reasonable salary caps for physician FTE costs.


	36
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is allowable for indirect cost recovery?

	
	Answer

	
	It is at the Applicant’s discretion to determine reasonable indirect cost recovery.


	37
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	The RFA states "Awarded Applicants will initially receive funding for one (1) year, with an option to extend for the remainder of the grant period". 
a. Will the 650K award be disbursed for the one year, with the option of additional funds up to December 31, 2024? 
b. Or is there a cap?

	
	Answer

	
	a. No, the Department anticipates the initial contract period to be twelve (12) months with an option for a no-cost extension through 12/31/2024 pending progress towards the required Performance Metrics and if funding is not fully expended.  The Department does not anticipate the availability of additional funding beyond this procurement process to support awarded projects.

b. The funding amount outlined in Details and Instructions; C. Awards is the cap funding available under this RFA process. The Department anticipates funding to be distributed among multiple awarded Applicants.  
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Performance Metrics Table – Rural GME Programs



All metrics outlined in the resulting contract will be tracked along with quarterly reports. For activities that are not included in the proposed grant-funded project, include a zero beside the activity.



		Type of Activity

		Q1

		Q2

		Q3

		Q4

		Totals



		Expand Existing or Develop New Rural Graduate Medical Education (GME) Programs



		Clinical training site is located in an area considered rural as determined by the Federal Office of Rural Health Policy (FORHP) through HRSA (Y/N). 

Provide name(s) of site(s).

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of clinical learners from under-represented populations in program.

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of preceptors from under-represented populations in program.

		

		

		

		

		



		Number and type of GME program created (e.g., Rural Training Track in Family Medicine, etc.)

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of clinical learners impacted by GME expansion/development. Please include both direct (resident physicians) and indirect (medical students, etc.).

		

		

		

		

		



		Total number of hours and weeks of rural clinical rotations, organized by training type, completed during reporting period (direct care)

		

		

		

		

		



		Total number of hours of didactic education provided to learners that addresses DEI, including rural and underserved populations. 

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of hours of new preceptor and/or faculty development training provided.

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of trained individuals who were retained in a Maine rural clinical practice setting following program completion.

		

		

		

		

		







Performance Metrics Table – Rural GME Program
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Healthcare Workforce Initiative: Expansion of Rural 
Clinical Preceptorships and Graduate Medical Education


OVERVIEW 







Grant 
Overview


This initiative is focused on building the healthcare workforce 
capacity in rural areas through two related strategies: 


• Expanding Access to Rural Clinical training sites and 
Preceptorships 


• Expanding Rural Graduate Medical Education and/or Rural 
Training Track programs
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This initiative from the Governor’s Maine Jobs and 
Recovery Plan will:
• Expand training for doctors, nurses, and other 


health professionals in rural communities 
• Encourage aspiring health care workers to launch 


rewarding careers in Down East, northern, and 
western Maine


• Support the pipeline of medical providers in areas 
where they’re needed most and strengthen Maine’s 
health care workforce for patients throughout the 
state
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Purpose







Key Terms


6


Term/Acronym Definition


Accredited Officially recognized or authorized as conforming with set standards set by the 
accrediting body.


Clinical Learners


Students enrolled in an Accredited healthcare profession educational or 
training program, including but not limited to Nursing (RN, LPN, APRN), 
Certified Nursing Assistants (CNAs), Behavioral Health (LCSW, LADC, MSW), 
Pharmacists, Physical Therapists, Physicians, Physician Assistants, Emergency 
Medical Services, (AEMT, Paramedic), Dentistry.


Clinical Preceptor An experienced healthcare practitioner who provides supervision of 
healthcare students during Clinical practice rotations. 


Clinical Preceptorship
Structured periods of learning for healthcare students in Clinical settings 
supported by teaching and oversight from experienced Clinical Preceptors to 
further develop their Clinical practice. 







Key Terms


7


Term/Acronym Definition
DEI Diversity, Equity and Inclusion


Graduate Medical 
Education


Formal, hospital-sponsored, or hospital-based training programs 
for individuals who have completed medical school and earned a 
Medical Doctor (MD) or Doctor of Osteopathy (DO) degree. GME 
programs include residency, internship, fellowship, specialty, and 
subspecialty programs.


Rural Training Track 
Program


An Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education 
(ACGME)- accredited program in which residents/fellows 
gain both urban and Rural experience, with more than half 
of the education and training taking place in a Rural area.


Sponsoring Institution Oversees, supports, and administers one or more ACGME-
Accredited residency/fellowship programs. 



https://www.acgme.org/





How is DHHS Defining RURAL? 
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Host training facility location 
(healthcare provider)


Clinical supervision must take place in a rural healthcare setting, as 
defined by the Federal Office of Rural Health Policy (FORHP) Health 
Resources & Services Administration (HRSA) Rural Health Grants 
Eligibility Analyzer.


https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/rural-health



https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/rural-health

https://data.hrsa.gov/tools/rural-health





Who is eligible to apply? 
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To be considered for grant funding
LEAD applicants MUST


 Be a Maine Based organization AND
 Operate an accredited training or education program OR 
 Partner with an organization that operates an accredited training 


or education program 


OR 
 Propose to become an accredited training program through the 


grant funding being offered 







Contract Terms
Anticipated contract period: Fall 2022 - December 2024


• Contract periods may vary based on the time each application is received and 
scored and the Department’s ability to fully execute each contract.  


• The availability of additional funding after this period is not anticipated.
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Awards
• DHHS anticipates making multiple awards as a result of this RFA.
• Up to $1.6M may be awarded to all applicants collectively through this 


RFA, up to the amounts specified for each applicant category.
• Up to $650,000 to support new clinical preceptorships
• Up to $950,000 to support expanding or new GME programs







Healthcare Workforce Initiative Expansion of Rural 
Clinical Preceptorships and Graduate Medical Education


Requirements 







Expanding Access to 
Rural Clinical Training Sites and Preceptors: 


12


Applicants Must 
Focus on students enrolled in an Accredited healthcare professional 
education or training program, including but not limited to:
• Nursing (LPN, RN, APRN)
• Certified Nursing Assistants (CNAs)
• Behavioral Health (LCSW, LADC, MSW) 
• Pharmacists
• Therapists (Physical, Respiratory, Occupational)  
• Physician Assistants
• Emergency Medical Services (AEMT, Paramedic) 
• Dentistry (Dental Hygienists, Dental Therapists, Expanded 


Function Dental Assistants) 







Expanding Access to 
Rural Graduate Medical Education: 


13


Applicants Must 
Convene relevant partners to either expand an existing GME program 
or develop new Rural GME programs as a strategy for recruiting and 
retaining physicians to practice in Rural areas.
GME is: a formal, hospital-sponsored, or hospital-based training program for individuals who 
have completed medical school and earned a Medical Doctor (MD) or Doctor of Osteopathy (DO) 
degree. GME programs include residency, internship, fellowship, specialty, and subspecialty 
programs. 


Rural Training Track Program is: ACGME-Accredited program in which residents/fellows gain both 
urban and Rural experience, with more than half of the education and training taking place in a 
Rural area.


Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME)



https://www.acgme.org/





Which funding can applicants apply for? 
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Applicants MAY


Apply for funding to implement EITHER or 
BOTH strategies. Each strategy application will 
be uniquely scored and awarded as follows: 
Awards of up to $650,000 for proposals to support Clinical Preceptorships and up 
to $950,000 for proposals to support expansion or new GME programs. Proposals 
to support Clinical Preceptorships will be capped at a maximum of $75,000 per 
Clinical site. (Collaborations may include multiple unique clinical sites).  The 
number and size of awards will depend on the number of proposals received, and 
available funds. 







• Stipends to offset Rural Provider’s clinical 
time to supervise/teach a learner 


• Rural preceptor and/or faculty 
development costs 


• Housing costs for learners at rural sites
• Resident salary costs for time attributable 


to rural site
• Milage costs associated with driving to 


rural clinical sites
• Costs associated with community 


engagement activities that support 
clinical learners/clinical preceptors and 
further strengthens the connection to the 
rural community


• Costs associated with Diversity, Equity and 
Inclusion efforts Maine DHHS
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• Alcoholic beverages
• Construction costs
• Goods or services for personal use
• Interest expenses
• Lobbying
• Duplicating or supplanting funding 


received from other federal or State 
resources. Awarded applicants 
must use ARPA funds in a way that 
is complementary to other 
available resources. 


Non-Allowable Use of FundsAllowable Use of Funds







Healthcare Workforce Initiative Expansion of Rural 
Clinical Preceptorships and Graduate Medical Education


Application Submission 







Application 
Submission


October 11, 
2022


Questions & 
Answers Summary 
Released by DHHS 


on or before 
September 30


Questions 
Due


September 
23


Resource 
Webinar


July 26,
2022


Submission Components & Deadlines
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Completing the Application
Applicants may apply for grant funds to support 
EITHER
Rural Clinical Preceptorships
OR
Rural Graduate Medical Education 


BOTH
Please apply for the funding your organization is 
best positioned to have the greatest impact. 
Applicants MUST complete each set of 
application forms for the strategy you are 
requesting funding for. 







Submission 
Requirements:
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Component Required Form
Application Cover Page Appendix A (Word)
Debarment, Performance and Non-
Collusion Certification Appendix B (Word)


Application form(s) for either or both: 
Rural Clinical Preceptorship
Rural Graduate Medical Education Appendix C (Word)


Budget Forms and Performance 
Metrics Tables


Within each application 
(click on ALL attachments)


Certificate of Insurance Standard ACORD Form 
(or equivalent)


Letters of Commitment 
(from each participating 
organization.)


Must include representation 
from both the education 
partner AND the medical 
provider partner where the 
clinical training will occur 


Applicants should be 
brief and concise in 
providing written 


information required
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REQUIRED SUBMISSION CONTENTS


 Application Cover Page (Appendix A)
 Debarment, Performance and Non-Collusion Certification (Appendix B) 
 Application(s) (Appendix C), including related attachments as identified in:
 Part I - Letters of Commitment from Partnering Agencies
 Part III - Project Workplan
 Part IV - Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Plan
 Part V – Performance/Outcome Metrics
 Part VII - Fiscal Management Letter of Support, if applicable
 Part VII - Budget Form 


 Valid certificate of insurance on a standard ACORD form (or the 
equivalent) evidencing the Applicant’s general liability, professional 
liability and any other relevant liability insurance policies that might be 
associated with the services provided as a result of this RFA.







Remember to click through ALL forms


APPLICATION FORM 
 


Applications may be obtained in a Word (.docx) format by double clicking on the 
document icon below.   
 


 
 


Rural Clinical 
Preceptorship Application 


Rural GME Program 
Application 


Rural Clinical 
Preceptorships Applic


 


Rural GME 
Application.docx
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APPLICATION COMPONENTS 


I. Applicant Experience and Collaboration Requirements


II. Program Design


III. Project Workplan


IV. Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Plan


V. Performance Outcome Metrics


VI. Sustainability 


VII.Fiscal Capacity, Budget Form and Narrative 







Performance Metrics Table and Narrative  
Complete for EACH strategy you are applying for grant funds.  
• All metrics will be tracked along with quarterly reports 
• Performance Metrics Tables are imbedded in the application
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Instructions: The Applicant must complete and submit the Performance Metrics Table. 


The Performance/Outcomes Metrics Form may be obtained in a Word (.docx) format by double clicking on the 
document icon below. 


Provide a brief narrative on how metrics will be tracked and reported.


•PERFORMANCE/OUTCOME METRICS


Performance 
Metrics_Rural Clinical 





RFA# 202206098


Maine Healthcare Workforce Initiative 


Grant Funding Opportunity for Expansion of Rural Clinical Preceptorships and Graduate Medical Education (GME) Programs





Performance Metrics Table – Rural Clinical Preceptorships





All metrics outlined in the resulting contract will be tracked along with quarterly reports. For activities that are not included in the proposed grant-funded project, include a zero beside the activity.





			Type of Activity


			Q1


			Q2


			Q3


			Totals





			New Rural Clinical Preceptorships or Rotations





			Clinical training site is located in an area considered rural as determined by the Federal Office of Rural Health Policy (FORHP) through HRSA (Y/N). Provide name(s) of site(s).


			


			


			


			





			Number of students from under-represented populations in program.


			


			


			


			





			Number of preceptors from under-represented populations in program.


			


			


			


			





			Number, organized by training type, of rural preceptorships created


			


			


			


			





			Number of clinical learners enrolled in rural preceptorships/rotations


			


			


			


			





			Total number of hours and weeks of rural clinical preceptorships/rotations, organized by training type, completed during reporting period (direct care education)


			


			


			


			





			Number of hours of new preceptor development/training provided


			


			


			


			





			Number of trained individuals who were retained in a Maine rural setting following graduation.


			


			


			


			











Performance Metrics Table – Rural Clinical Preceptorship






Cost Proposal & Budget Narrative


The Budget Form and Narrative must be accurate, aligned, connected, 
and realistic
• Complete and submit the budget form providing a breakdown of expenses 


for the entire period of performance as described in this RFA – see 
embedded file in each application


• Include a budget narrative to explain the basis for determining the expenses 
submitted on the budget form. Provide a brief explanation/justification for 
each line item listed on the budget form. 
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Budget Form.xlsx





cost proposal


			State of Maine


			Department of Health and Human Services


			COST PROPOSAL FORM


			RFA# 202206098


			Maine Healthcare Workforce Initiative
Grant Funding Opportunity for Expansion of Rural Clinical Preceptorships and Graduate Medical Education (GME) Programs


			Rural Clinical Preceptorship


			Applicant's Organization Name:


			Contact Person:


			LINE			EXPENSES						COST


			1			PERSONNEL EXPENSES


			2			Salaries/Wages Direct Service Staff						$   - 0


			3			Fringe Benefits Direct Service Staff						$   - 0


			4			SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES - Direct Service staff						$   - 0


			5			Salaries/Wages Indirect Staff						$   - 0


			6			Fringe Benefits Indirect Staff						$   - 0


			7			SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES - Indirect Staff						$   - 0


			8			TOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES						$   - 0





			9			CAPITOL EQUIPMENT PURCHASES						$   - 0





			10			SUBCONTRACTS (List Each Subcontractor Individually)


			11									$   - 0


			12									$   - 0


			13									$   - 0


			14									$   - 0


			15									$   - 0


			16			TOTAL SUBCONTRACT EXPENSES						$   - 0





			17			ALL OTHER EXPENSES


			18			Occupancy – Depreciation						$   - 0


			19			Occupancy – Interest						$   - 0


			20			Occupancy – Rent						$   - 0


			21			Utilities/Heat						$   - 0


			22			Telephone						$   - 0


			23			Maintenance/Minor Repairs						$   - 0


			24			Bonding/Insurance						$   - 0


			25			Equipment Rental/Lease						$   - 0


			26			Materials/Supplies						$   - 0


			27			Media Buys						$   - 0


			28			Depreciation (Non-Occupancy)						$   - 0


			29			Food						$   - 0


			30			Client - Related Travel						$   - 0


			31			Other Travel						$   - 0


			32			Consultants - Direct Service						$   - 0


			33			Consultants - Other 						$   - 0


			34			Independent Public Accountants						$   - 0


			35			Technology Services						$   - 0


			36			Software						$   - 0


			37			Service Provider Tax						$   - 0


			38			Training/Education						$   - 0


			39			Miscellaneous						$   - 0


			40			SUBTOTAL ALL OTHER EXPENSES						$   - 0





			41			Indirect Allocated						$   - 0


			42			TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES						$   - 0





			43			TOTAL EXPENSES						$   - 0





			44			Total Agency Expenses						$   - 0





			45			Indirect Cost Rate 


			46			Included in Indirect Allocation:
























Certificate of Insurance
• Must be valid and evidence the Applicant’s general 


liability, professional liability and any other 
relevant liability insurance policies that might be 
associated with the services provided


• Standard ACORD Form: ACORD certificate of liability 
insurance – also known as an ACORD 25 form and a 
certificate of insurance (COI) – is a one-page document 
that proves you have business liability insurance 
coverage


• To request documentation, reach out to your insurance 
company


• Equivalent Form: Documentation that achieves the same 
purpose as an ACORD certificate
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Submission 
Instructions


• The Department assumes no liability for assuring 
accurate/complete e-mail transmission and receipt.


• E-mails containing links to file sharing sites or online file 
repositories will not be accepted. Only e-mail applications 
that have the actual requested files attached will be 
accepted.


• Encrypted e-mails received which require opening 
attachments and logging into a proprietary system will not 
be accepted.


• File size limits are 25MB per e-mail. Applicants may submit 
files across multiple e-mails, as necessary, due to file size 
concerns. All files must be received by the due date and 
time listed.


• Applications are to be submitted as a single, typed, PDF file 
and must include all related documents identified on the 
application specific to each category, refer to Appendix C.


Applications must be received 
by: October 11, 2022, no later 
than 11:59 p.m., local time.
Applications must be 
submitted electronically to 
the following email address: 
Proposals@maine.gov and 
must include the subject line: 
“RFA# 202206098 Application 
Submission”
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Application Scoring







Scoring Process 
The Grant Review Team will use a consensus approach to evaluate and score all sections.  Members 
of the review team will not score those sections individually but, instead, will arrive at a consensus 
as to assignment of points for each of those sections.
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Scoring Weights 
The score will be based on a 100-point scale and will measure the degree to which each application 
meets the following criteria. Only complete applications will be considered for awards. 


Scoring Criteria Points Available


Part I – Experience and Collaboration Requirements 15


Part II – Program Design 25


Part III – Workplan 10


Part IV – Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Plan 10


Part V – Performance/Outcome Metrics 10


Part VI – Sustainability 10


Part VII – Fiscal Capacity, Budget Form and Narrative 20


Total Points 100 Points







Selection & Award


Applicants will be notified of selection or non-
selection in writing by the Department.


All award information will be available on the RFA 
website, including the Q&A responses and 
selection package.
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Questions?


Organizations can ask 
questions two ways:
During the webinar; 
and/or
By submitting a written 
question to the RFA 
Coordinator - Brittany Hall 
Brittany.hall@maine.gov



mailto:Brittany.hall@maine.gov





Q&A Process
To ensure the Department can provide a clear answer to any questions, 
submit the question(s) with the specific options your organization is 
interested in applying for.


For example, if your organization wants to know if a specific cost is 
allowable (not already identified in the RFA), submit the intended cost 
asking if this expenditure is allowable.


Asking general questions without specific details may not result in the 
Department providing the clear answers your organization is looking for 
in order to successfully complete the application.
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Question & Answer (Q & A) Process


• Submitting Questions:
• Questions must be submitted by e-mail to the RFA Coordinator - Brittany Hall 


Brittany.hall@maine.gov
• Questions should be submitted as soon as possible but no later than September 23, 2033, 11:59 


pm local time. 
• Emails must include the subject line: “RFA# 202206098 Questions”. 


• Q & A Summary: 
• Responses to all questions will be compiled in writing and posted on the Division of 


Procurement Services Grant RFPs and RFAs website.  
• The Department anticipates publication of all questions and answers at least 14 calendar days 


prior to the application submission deadline. 
• All interested parties MUST go to this website to obtain a copy of the Q & A Summary.  Only 


those answers issued in writing on this website will be considered binding. 
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Performance Metrics Table – Rural Clinical Preceptorships



All metrics outlined in the resulting contract will be tracked along with quarterly reports. For activities that are not included in the proposed grant-funded project, include a zero beside the activity.



		Type of Activity

		Q1

		Q2

		Q3

		Q4

		Totals



		New Rural Clinical Preceptorships or Rotations



		Clinical training site is located in an area considered rural as determined by the Federal Office of Rural Health Policy (FORHP) through HRSA (Y/N). Provide name(s) of site(s).

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of students from under-represented populations in program.

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of preceptors from under-represented populations in program.

		

		

		

		

		



		Number, organized by training type, of rural preceptorships created

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of clinical learners enrolled in rural preceptorships/rotations

		

		

		

		

		



		Total number of hours and weeks of rural clinical preceptorships/rotations, organized by training type, completed during reporting period (direct care education)

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of hours of new preceptor development/training provided

		

		

		

		

		



		Number of trained individuals who were retained in a Maine rural setting following graduation.
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